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Federal M ne Safety and Health Review Commi ssion (FF.MS. HRC.)
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR, CIVIL PENALTY PROCEEDI NG
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. PENN 87-251
PETI TI ONER A. C. No. 36-00906-3651
V.

Gateway M ne
GATEWAY COAL COMPANY,
RESPONDENT

DECI SI ON

Appearances: Therese |. Salus, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor
U.S. Departnent of Labor, Philadel phia, Pennsylvania,
for the Secretary of Labor;
Davi d Saunders, Safety Director, Gateway Coal Co.,
Prosperity, Pennsylvania, for Respondent.

Bef ore: Judge Broderick
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Secretary of Labor (Secretary) seeks a civil penalty for
the violation of 30 C.F. R O 75.329 alleged in a citation issued
Cctober 10, 1986, in connection with an i mr nent danger
wi t hdrawal order issued the same day. Respondent did not contest
or seek review of the wi thdrawal order and, although both parties
have subnmitted argument as to whether it was properly issued, it
is not before me in this penalty proceeding. The citation charged
that Respondent permitted an excessive concentration of nethane
to exist in a travelable portion of the 5Abutt, 7Aface | ongwal
bl eeder systemin the number 45 crosscut of the tailgate entry of
the subject m ne. Respondent contends that the inspector took the
nmet hane reading in the wong area of the bl eeder system Pursuant
to notice, the case was heard in Washi ngton, Pennsylvania, on
June 8, 1988. Joseph F. Reid and Alex O Rourke testified on
behal f of the Secretary. Gary Haj du and Robert W Hauser
testified on behalf of Respondent. Both parties have fil ed post
hearing briefs. | have considered the entire record and the
contentions of the parties, on the basis of which | nmake this
deci si on.
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FI NDI NGS OF FACT

1. At all times pertinent to this proceedi ng, Respondent was
t he owner and operator of an underground coal nmine in G eene
County, Pennsylvania known as the Gateway M ne.

2. Respondent produced approxi mately 689, 000 tons of coa
annual | y.

3. No evidence was subnitted concerni ng Respondent's history
of prior violations. | conclude that the history was favorable,
and not such that a penalty otherw se appropriate should be
i ncreased because of it.

4., On Cctober 10, 1986, Federal mne inspector Joseph Reid,
an MSHA ventilation specialist, was assisting a regular MSHA
i nspector on an inspection of the subject nmine. They proceeded
first to the 5Abutt, 7Aface longwall. Coal was not being mined at
that tinme.

5. The inspectors wal ked out of the mne through the return
escapeway, exam ning the various bl eeders on the way out.
I nspector Reid took methane readings in approximately 20 areas in
the bl eeder system This was an area fromwhich pillars had been
extract ed.

6. At the end of the tailgate entry of the bl eeder system
approximately 3 feet fromthe gob area, Inspector Reid took
readi ngs showing 4.8 to 5.2 percent nethane, at a point 12 inches
fromthe roof. The readings were taken with a hand hel d nethane
detector. The area was well supported with cribs. The inspector
was standi ng between 2 cribs when he took the readings. |nspector
Reid orally inforned Respondent that he was issuing an i mi nent
danger withdrawal order. The inspector then took three bottle
sanples fromthe same area. He took an air reading at the
| ocation where the air was crossing the gob and found 2397.5
cubic feet per mnute.

7. The bottle sanples were sent to the MSHA | aboratory in
M. Hope, West virginia. Anal yses showed net hane concentrations
of 4.23 percent, 7.13 percent and 7.81 percent.

8. Inspector Reid issued withdrawal O der No. 2681195 under
section 107(a) of the Act, and citation 2681196 under section
104(a) charging a violation of 30 CF.R 0O 75.301. The citation
was nodified July 1, 1987, to charge a violation of 30 CF. R O
75. 329.

9. The bl eeder entries are required to be exam ned weekly by
a certified person. A date board indicating such exam nations
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was maintained in the area of the citation, approximtely ten
feet further fromthe gob than the point where the inspector took
hi s readi ngs.

10. Although coal was not being mned, there were
approximately five people working in the |longwall area when the
order and citation were issued. The inspector decided not to
order these nmen withdrawn but to permt the mine foreman to
attenpt to correct the situation.

11. The condition was abated, the order lifted, and the
citation term nated the sane day when a stopping was opened to
i ntroduce additional ventilation into the area. Readi ngs were
then taken in the area involved showing 1.4 percent to 1.5
percent net hane.

12. During the initial inspection, the inspector took
addi ti onal nethane readings at the regulator and at the m xi ng
point in the bleeder entry in question and found 17 percent
nmet hane.

13. Respondent's assistant nine foreman, Gary Haj du
acconpani ed I nspector Reid on Cctober 10, 1986. He took readi ngs
with a nmethane detector at a point approximately 10 to 15 feet
fromthe crib where the Inspector had found the excessive
met hane. Foreman Haj du's readi ngs showed from2.7 to 3 percent
nmet hane. He al so took readings at the outby side of the crib and
found 4.3 to 5 percent methane. He took further readings at the
regul ator and found 1.3 to 1.7 percent methane. The regul ator was
approxi mately 150 feet fromthe gob

REGULATI ON
30 CF.R 0O 75.329 provides in part:

all areas fromwhich pillars have been

extracted . . . shall be ventilated by bl eeder
entries or by bleeder systenms. . . . \Wen ventilation
of such areas is required, such ventilation shall be
mai nt ai ned so as continuously to dilute, render

harm ess, and carry away nethane and ot her expl osive
gases within such areas and to protect the active
wor ki ngs of the mine fromthe hazards of such nethane
and ot her expl osive gases. Air coursed through the
under ground areas from which pillars have been wholly
or partially extracted which enters another split of
air shall not contain nore than 2.0 volume per centum
of nmet hane, when tested at the point it enters such
other split
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| SSUES

1. VWhether the nethane readings found by Inspector Reid on
Cct ober 10, 1986, constituted a violation of 30 C.F. R 0O 75.329?

2. If aviolation is found, was it significant and
substantial ?

3. If aviolation is found, what is the appropriate penalty?
CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW
| MM NENT DANGER

As | noted above, the inspector issued the citation charging
the violation with which we are here concerned, in connection
with an i mm nent danger withdrawal order under section 107(a).
Both parties have introduced evi dence concerning the existence
vel non of an inmm nent danger and have argued the question in
their post hearing briefs. However, Respondent did not file a
contest or an application for review of the order with the
Commi ssion. The propriety of the issuance of the order cannot be
chall enged in a penalty proceeding. The issues before nme are
whet her the alleged violation took place and, if so, the
appropriate penalty. | nmake no finding as to whether an inm nent
danger exi sted.

WHERE WERE THE READI NGS AND SAMPLES TAKEN

There is sone dispute as to where Inspector Reid took his
met hane detector readings and his bottle sanples. Reid testified
that he took themat a point about three feet fromthe gob area
and twelve inches fromthe roof while standing between two cribs.
Respondent's witness intimated that he took them while reaching
into the gob. | accept Inspector Reid' s testinmny which is
consistent with his contenporaneous notes (Governnent's Exhi bit
6) .

REQUI REMENTS OF 30 C.F.R. 0O 75. 329

The regul atory standard has two distinct nandates: (1)
ventilation in bleeder entries required where pillars have been
extracted shall be maintained so as to dilute, render harni ess
and carry away nethane within such areas and to protect the
active workings of the mne; (2) air fromsuch areas which enters
another split of air shall not contain nore than two percent
nmet hane. |tmann Coal Conpany v. Secretary, 2 FMSHRC 1986 (1980).
Active workings is defined in the regulations as "any place in a
coal mne where nmners are normally required to work or travel."
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30 CF.R 0O75.2(g)(4). Respondent is charged with failing to
ventilate the area of its bleeder systemso as to dilute, render
harm ess and carry away nmethane within such areas. It is not
charged with perm tting excessive nethane concentrations at the
regul ator or m xi ng points.

VI OLATI ON

There is no dispute that the readi ngs and bottle sanpl es
taken by Inspector Reid showed nmethane in a potentially explosive
concentration. Methane is explosive when its concentration is
between 5 and 15 percent. | have found that the readings and
sanpl es were taken in a travel able portion of the bl eeder system
In fact they were taken within ten feet fromthe date board
mai nt ai ned by the m ne exam ner. Therefore, this was an area
where nminers are normally required to travel. It constituted
active workings of the mine. Since Respondent failed to dilute
and render harm ess nethane within such areas, a violation of 30
C.F.R 0 75. 329 has been established. Respondent cited the case
of Secretary v. Geenwich Collieries, 8 FMSHRC 1390 (1986), but
that case involved a second requirenent of 0O 75.329: nethane
concentrations at bl eeder evaluation points in excess of two
percent. It did not involve a charge of nethane in an expl osive
concentration. It is not applicable to this case.

SI GNI FI CANT AND SUBSTANTI AL

A violation is properly terned significant and substantia
if it contributes to a safety hazard reasonably likely to result
in serious injury. Mathies Coal Co., 6 FMSHRC 1 (1984). Methane
will explode if it exists inthe 5 to 15 percent range in the
presence of any ignition. An ignition nay be created by a roof
fall which causes a spark. Roof falls in or at a gob area are
reasonably |ikely to occur. A nethane explosion in an active
wor ki ngs of a coal mne is likely to result in serious injury. |
conclude that the violation was significant and substanti al

OTHER CRI TERI A

There is no evidence as to how long the violative condition
had exi sted. The area was exam ned weekly. | amnot able on this
record to conclude that the condition resulted from Respondent's
negl i gence. The condition was abated pronptly by introducing
additional ventilation to the area.

PENALTY
Considering all the evidence in the light of the criteria in

section 110(i) of the Act, | conclude that a civil penalty of
$500 is appropriate for the violation found.
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ORDER

Based on the above findings of fact and conclusions of | aw,
IT IS ORDERED

1. Citation 2681196 issued October 10, 1986, charging a
violation of 30 CF. R 0O 75.329 is AFFIRMED including its
findings that the violation was significant and substanti al

2. Respondent shall within 30 days of the date of this order
pay a civil penalty in the anpunt of $500 for the violation found
her ei n.

James A. Broderick
Adm ni strative Law Judge



